KANE COUNTY
, ~ DIVISION of TRANSPORTATION
Carl Schoedel, P.E.

41W011 Burlington Rd
Director of Transportation St. Charles, IL. 60175
County Engineer Ph: (630) 845-3799
Fax: (630) 587-2474
MEMORANDUM
TO: Advisory Committee Member
FROM: Jerry Dickson
Coordinator
DATE: October 18, 2005
RE: November 1 Meeting Packet

The Impact Fee Advisory Commitiee met on October 4 to discuss the update of
Ordinance 0422 and details of the development of this process, Several members
requested  information on the development of the current program prompting the .
- following packet items:

Typical Information '
e Agenda for November 1 meeting.
‘e Draft minutes of October 4 meeting

Additional Information .
» Brief synopsis of the current program development. , .
e Copy of letter to municipalities requesting assistance in obtaining information to
assist in developing land use assumptions for the proposed program.
e 2030 Executive Summary (includes Land Resource Management Plan- and
Transportation Plan on CD). '

Please review this information before the November meeting to familiarize yourself with
the data, issues and procedures enabling us to have a productive and efficient meeting,




KANE COUNTY ROAD IMPACT FEE ADVISORY COMMITTEE .
AGENDA

November 1, 2005
8:00 AM -

Kane County Government Center
County Board Room
719 Batavia Avenue, Building “AY
Geneva, IL 60134
Call to Order
Roli Call
Public Comment
Approval of Minutes of Meeting of October 4, 2005
Receiving Communications

Reports

a. Staff Report— Previous Analysis of Existing Deﬁciél_lcies
b. Progress Report — Land Use Assumptions

Old Business

.a. Discussion on Interim Report :
b. Discussion on Facilities Driven approach to calculating fees
c. Discussion of Kane County 2030 Land Resource Management Plan and
Transportation Plan , '
d. Synopsis of previous IF program development

New Business
2. Schedule Next Meeting — Tentative date of December 6, 2005
'b. Transportation Committee recommended o County Board a December 20

date for the Public Hearing on land Use Assumptions

Adj ournment




-, Was

DRAFT

Kane County Road Impact Fee
Advisory Commiitee

Kane County Government Center

Members in Attendance:

Chairman Don Wolfe

Vice Chairman Frank Griffin

Christine Ludwiszewski

Rick D.unl%{)

Catherine Hurlbut -

Larry Keller

Christine Klein - '
Marilyn Michelini (Alt. for J. Schielke)
Dave Morrison (Alt. for J. Willey) -
Jan Carlson _

~ Others Present: _
‘Carl Schoedel, Dir. Kane County Div. -of Transportation -
Tom Rickert, Kane County Div. of Transportation

J errngickson, Kzne County Div. of Transportation
Heidi Files, Kane County-Div. Of Transportation

1.  CALLTO ORDER

order at 8:05 am.

- Village Administrator for

Meeting Minutes - October 4, 2005

Kane County Board | S
Kane County Economic Development Advisory Board
Attainable Housing Alliance )
Fox Valley Bldg & Constrc. Trades Council/Local 150-
Kane County Board '
President, Village of West Dundee
Fox Valley Association of Realtors
Village President for Mon%pmery

1llage of Elburm

Kane County Board‘

Steve Coffinbargar, Kane County Div, of Transportation
Karl Fry - Intersect LLC, Consultant for Kane County
Phil Bus, Development Exec. Dir. )

Chairman Wolfe called the Kane County Road Im_provemenf Tmpact Fee Advisory Committee meeting to

Members introduced themselves. A quorum was-established with ten voting members present.

I . ROLL CALL/INTRODUCTIONS

M. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None

Iv. MINUTES

‘Dimlap. Motion passed unanimously by voice vote of 9-
V.  RECEIVING COMMUNICATIONS - None

VI. REPORTS
A

A%rovai of May-18, 2005 Minutes - Keller mdge‘d 10 approve the minutes as presented, seconded by

Committ'eeOr‘ganizations and Responsibilities

i) Discussion - Mr. Karl Fry, President/owner with Tntersect, LLC, ;'eﬁofted he has been retained by
c

‘Kane Céunty_ to provide advice to this committee and
Fry asked the committee to contact him personall

presentation and he will follow-up to

7 ]fgiosiﬁon of vice c an.

- ! y : wili be providing the techni
committes will be involved in the process, and will have information available on which to make its

work on this project. This

i) Election of Vice Chairman - Chairman Wolfe opened up the meeting to take nominations forthe
nommated Christine Klem. Hurlbut nominated Frank Griffin Christine Klein

eclined her nomination. Frank Griffin was appointed as Vice Chairman by voice vote of 9-0.

B

B. _ Presentation - Impact Fee Program Uﬁdate - M, Fry discussed that state le
formation of this body fo review impact fees, advise the county board as to the issues relate

islature requires the
to road impact fees

-and advise the County Board on land use assumptions and the com‘frghensi\_re road improvement plan. A further

summeary followed on what this committee’s responsibilities included.

ecision. Mr. -

nmitte Iy with any questions. M. Fry walked throu the information that

already provided in each of the members’ binders, Firture meetngs wi]ﬁ;:tclude an agengcl;a and a PowerPomt
make sure the alternates have the information. :



Road Impact Fee Advisory Committee

i) Reason for Update - Mr. Fry explained the reason for this update was prmm ally due o alarge
variation in the fees, the current ordinance being somewhat inconsistent with the goals of the county’s
Comprehensive Plan; and to update the current methodology us ed to calculate the impact Tee.

_ ii) Alternative Calgulation Approaches - Currentt the cotmty’s approach s “needs driven” which is
a approach similar to DuPage County w ereby the county calculates the amount of road capacity which is
consumed by deyelopment, then the developer is charged for that amount of road capacity. The proposed alpproach
is a “facilities driven” approach whereby the cost of needed road improvements are allocated to new development
based on {raffic generation. M. Fry noted that every decision this committee makes as it relates to land use, or a
project added or deleted, will have an impact on the fees. He farther explained that the facilities-driven ﬁaproa,ch
vw']f review current and existing land use (model;n%) for the furture, using the best data available. Next, the
Comprehensive Road Improvement Plan (CRIP) will be updated to include bnd%ﬁ development, storm sewer areas,
etc. to develop cost estimates. Mr. Fry also stated this committee must consider the option of including state roads
in the program or not. Including them in the program would Jevel out the fees from cne service area 1o the other.
Currently, legislature allows the county 1o charge impact fees for state roads. Next, new irips from thenew land use
will be calculated. Next, the costs of the plan will be divided by the number of trips to give the impact per trip to
the county. From there, larger service areas, possibly three or four areas, will be develoged with the goal to make
the impact fee program consistent with the county’s overall planning goals, and benefit the county as a whole.
* + Griffin noted that zlic:dlr)rio_r meetings there was concern that the trip lengt databen%E used in the current ordinance

were old_ wherein Mr. Fry concurred and indicated that due to the time it takes for that datato be updated, it would
not be available to this committee, But, the dafa was not necessary because with the new process the trt length
was not a critical element to the calculation. What was upPo_rtant was ttip generation and the relationship between
one type of land use from another. The City of Naperville uses the fac ties-driven approach.

' iii) Service AreaIssues - Service areas are required by state statute. Mr. Fry explained that the City-
of Naperville has one service area while DuPage County has nine. He envisions three or four service areas for Kane
County depending upon the different roadways bel_nfg considered for the CRIP, i.e., collectors, arterials, strategic
sepional atterials, etc, Recalling the Jast formation of the service areas, Griffin stated boundary lings were drawn to

Hrentiate the services areas.. He asked in the new proposal whether Mr. Fry saw a transition withinithose areas
or would 2 fine be drawn, wherein, Mr. Fry explaine that boundary lines would make a difference. However, by’
adjusting boundaries ever so slightly, it would make a change m the fee. Mr. Fry noted that two concepts are
important when considering service areas. First, fees have fo_be “uniquely and specifically attributable”
. impacts of a development. Second, fee payers must receive a “direct and material bepefit” from the expenditore of
the fees Therefore, the fee that was charged for a Jarge development had to be equitable to the development and the
developer had 1o received a benefit for each dollar he paid in fees. Hurlbut questioned the calculation of an impact
contribution when a subdivision is created, for example, 12 or 13 miles away from an Interstate mtersection and
benefits from. it: Mr. Fry explained how the SRA’s may have a direct material benefit to that subdivision. He
suggested that when gc:;:g through the process it may be necessary-io allocate the costs of the real major projects
- thronghout the county and then only the ones within the service areas and calculaie them out to be more equitable.

- -iv) Consistency with other PlanninF Documents - The County.adopted the 2030 Transportation

Plan and the 2030 Land Resource Management Plan on October 12, 2004.  However, those two plans where

adopted after the implementation of the existing impact fee program. Mr. Fry will be bringing in the documents.

" Chairman Wolfe suggested that staff provide copres and the CD-ROMs of both 2030 plans to the members and

their alternates. . '

. _v) Public and Mumicipal Involvement - Mr. Fry em hasized thatit will be important for the coumty

 and fhis committee fo receive adequate input from the public and the municipalities on this matter. In addition, he

recommended that the members speak 10 other counly board members to receive their jnput. Mr. Fry: ill be
forwarding a monthly status report to county board members to keep them updated. .

: ~ vi)Ordinance Update Schedule - Mr. Fry:provided a meeting schedule for thenext 18 monihs. The
following is proposed: 12/20/05 -hold a public hearing on land use assumptions; 1/23/06 - provide a
recommendation to the county board on land use a‘ssun%panS' 7/19/06 - hold a {mb]ic hearing on the
Comprehensive Roadwaér Improvement Plan and impact fee ordinance Tevisions; 8/17/06 - provide a final
recommendation on the Comprehensive Roadway Improvement Plan and ordinance revisions; and 10/10/06 - the

¢ ; the Comprehensive Roadway Improyement Plan and revised ordinance. M. Fry explained the
. jmportance of meeting the necessary time constraints and the requiremnents of holding public hearings. He asked -
members to contact him via cell phone or email him with questions or concerns at &y@,hltersect— LC.com.

_-Questions followed as 10 whether certain roadways could or could not be included as part of the CRIP,
wherein Mr. Fry explained that if there was an existng deficiency, 1t was not fair to charge developers to fix the
defgcwn? because it was there prior to the development. However, Mr. Fry believed those types of projects should
be mcluded in the CRIP, but medmg would have to be found. If a minor fix to a road was required before a
devélopment occurred but now re(%ﬁuet_i much more money after the development, Mr. F eeqlajned that the
developer could be required to patﬁ' e difference. Regarding exemptions from certamuses,%?ry said that this
commitiee could recommend to the county board that no exemptions be allowed or that certain uses be exempt.

2




Road Tmpact Fee Advisory Commiitee

Two ways of exempling existed: First, one would calculate the fees based on projected land use and then exempt
certain land uses; or, secondly, one would exempt land uses from the calculation fees and have everyone else pay
for the fees, which Mr. Fry did not see as being very fair. Lastly, Mr. Fry mentioned this was a ood lime to begn
thinking about those types of matters and he encouraged the members to think about the county’s Comprehensive
Plan and how it encovraged redevelopment in historic downtowns. He posed the question to members whether
historic downtowns should be exempt or discounted. - :

Pera Iquestion about confinuing to hold back certan Eercentages and whether they would be alfected by the
process, Mr. Fry stated that holdbacks >would ot be affected. Hurbut asked if the county could modify or betier
* define the definitions in the state’s statute, whereby Mr. Fry stated that better clarification could occur or the county
board could amend the techmcal Sé) ifications and procedures manual to give better guidance of what was
expecied, - Chairman Wolfe directed Dir. Schoedel, Attorney Chesbrough and staff to review the definitions for

better clarification.

.. Ms. Ludwiszewski asked Mr. Fry to provide an explanation as 10 why DuPage County’s needs-driven
approached worked for so long but has begun fo fail. Mr. Fr;}r)explamed that the needs-driven approach worked for

- DuPage County in that it generated money for the county, whereas, that a%)p_rqqch in Kane County may not work.
He believed that if Kane County was frying to plan for the future, the acihities-driven approach was the most
flexible and was envisioned by State statute. M. Fry reminded the members that this committee and the county
board could still continue to use s current approach. Instead, however, he believed Kane County had an
Opfomnﬂy 1o be a model for other counties. Chairman Wolf also eed, noting the last approach by Kane County
did not appear to work well and the county found that out toward the end of the process. The facilities-driven
approach appears to %otenh.a]ly generate more fees, better meet the goals of the 2030 Land Resource Management
Plan and to address the variation in fees between service areas. - o g

' Giiffin asked whether this board would be revisiting the CRIP deficiencies, determining the existing/future
deficiencies, and how they would be calculated, wherein Mr. Fry explained that the CRIP could be revisited buthe
did not recommend it. Existing deficiencies only applied when an impact fee ordinance was firstadopted. Once the
impact fees were adopted, any deficiencies that occurred were due fo development that was subject 1o 'pa,y_mg afee.
Therefore, the county would be chasing amoving tarFet M. Fry stated that 1fthe committee determined 1t wanted

Ty in the process. Chairman ‘Wolfe recommended that staff

- {o revisit the deficiencies, it could review them ear: 1
provide 2 list of the existing deficiencies at the next committee meeting.

- Rickert was hoping to would stay away from the deficiencies since much time and effort was done on the

, g:_o;ect. However, he offered to explain what the deficiencies were af that time and how they were discerned. -
ir. Schoedel discussed the steps that stafftook prior, explaining that the base line informiation was available. This
Sime around in the process, Mr. Fry believed better land use data existed as compared to the last time. M. Keller
agreed there was much Em_wth in the area, but the {ransportation grid needed to be current in-order to collect the
imnact fees. He also believed that in trying to be fair, someone would always complain n the end. Conversation

follows on‘the Catch-22 cycle of development. . ‘
VI OLD BUSINESS | | o | o

Mr. Jerry Dickson noted that two oufstanding issues still existed: religions institutions and determinmng the
fees for the Tri-Cities area. Currently, Mr. Dickson worked out agreements with religious institutions anf the
matter has not been resolved vet. - Hurlbut asked staff to find out how other counties have handled religious
institations. Griffin asked whether new members of larger communities should be added to the committes list,
wherein Rickertnoted that the Kane Council of Mayors did select Mayors Schielke, Keller, and Willey to represent

all of the municipalities.
VIIL NEW BUSINESS

Schedule Next Meeting - Members agreed to hold their next meeting on November 1, 2005, 8:00 am.,
Kane Cou;lty Board Room, to discuss land use assumptions and existing deficiencies. ' '

IX. ADJOURNMENT

_ The meeting was!adjoﬁmed at 9:23 am. oh motion by Keller, seconded by Griffin. Motion passed
unanimously. : . '

\s\ Celeste K. Weilandt .
Celeste K. Wellandt, Recording Secretary




KANE COUNTY
DIVISION of TRANSPORTATION .
; " 41W011 Burlington Road

Carl Schoedel, P.E.
Director of Transportation St. Charles, IL 60175
County Engineer Phone: (630) 845-3799
Fax: (630) 5872474
www.coJane iLus
October 18, 2005

Brief Synopsis of Current Program Development

This is a synopsis of the meetings held during the- development of the o:rigfn;lal Impact Fee Program in
chronological order. Bullet points are representative of the highlights of the meeting.

December 9, 2002
. Pirst Advisory Commitiee Meeting

o -Don Wolfe appointed chairman by County Board, Frank Griffin was €lected Vice-Chair per the By-
Laws. ‘ . ' :

e Goals and Methodology — State Statute (605 ILCS 5/5-901 et. Seq) guides the development of the -

" program. Fees are used to correct firture not current deficiencies. »

e TFirst step is the development of Land Use Assumptions, The assumptions are projected changes in land
use for commercial and residential densities in conjunction with population and employment over a 20-
year time period. The research data for this project was the NIPC 2020 projections and the 2000 census.

o Development of the Comprehensive Road Improvement Plan (CRIP) is another element. Components of
the CRIP include: intersection improvements/signalization, road widening/expansion, bridge
improvements and Right-Of-Way acquisition.

e - Fee determination formula inputs: number of new trips, average trip length, % véhicle miles traveled on
county road system, capacity of one roadway lane-mile operating at an acceptable level of service.
Timelines for public hearings and County Board decisions are specific in the State Statute.

e CRIP must be updated at least every five years and may not be amended more than once a year.

o The By-Laws and responsibilities of the Committee were explained. '

 January 22,2003
Advisory Committee Meeting

¢ Reviewed population data, which is balf of the land use assumptions. Staff is developing the land use
: assumptions and bringing them to the committee for review. ‘ '
e The methodology to develop the control totals are detailed. The County Engineer referred to a graph
that showed the contro] totals for the 2000 census number (404,119), the NIPC adopted 2020 projection
(552, 034), the 2023 projection (582,271), and the preliminary 2030 projection from NIPC (750,000).
‘We added about 10,000 people per year from the 2020 projection to the 2023 projection. Once the
© control totals were developed, the growth needed to be distributed.
e Growth “Hot Spots” were identified from input from both the Transportation and Development
Departments and NIPC staff. Hot spots varied (mumnicipal Comprehensive Plans, Land Use and
Boundary Agreements, platted/planned subdivisions). '




Planning Partnership Areas (PPA) are used as districts or service areas for the Impacf_l?‘eo program.

Februoary 5, 2003
-Advisory Committee Meeting

The methodology used to develop assumptions about future employment was explained.

‘Proposed control totals were 215,726 for 2003, 246,894 for 2013, and 278,061 for 2023. |

The 2013 employment number (246,894) exceeds the 2020 adopted NIPC forecast (231,620). NIPC
underestimated what the actual employment would be (an mcrease of approx.lmately 3,000 jobs per
year). .
The projections help to characterize where people w111 be traveling (future travel demand),

Committee was interested in determining the percent of jobs in relationship to the population.

) April 10, 2003
Public I-Iearmg on Land Use Assumptlons

Public hearing held to inform and dlscuss the proposed Iand use assumptlons to the general const1tuency
of the Connty. :

Staff explained the service areas proposed along with land use assumptxons

Comments from the public reviewed by the Advisory Commlttee to mcorporate into tho :
recommendation to the County Board on land usé assumptions. )
Explanation that NIPC 2020 numbers were used with minor ad_]ustments to meet the 20—year projection
of 2023. ‘

Question raised concerning municipal involvement in the devolopment of the land use assurnptmns
Followed with explanation that (3) members of the Advisory Committee are municipal representatives.
Changes are possible once the assumptions are adopted? Once adopted, changes to the land use
assumptions are incorporated during the update, which is requlred by statute a minimum of once every
ﬁve years. ‘

April 23 2003
Advisory Committee Meeting -

Questions arose as to whether the municipalities were involved or had knowledge of the program. The
County Engineer and the Asst. State’s Attorney stated that we followed the State Statute concerning
notification. Chairman Wolfe suggested we spend more time on notifying the municipal representatives.

Advisory Committee voted to recommend the land use assumptions developed to the County Board for
the June 10, 2003 meeting. This meets the statute’s requirement of within 30 days of the public meeting.

Annual updates cannot increase the total project cost by more than 10%. If more than 10% then a full . ;
- update will be necessary and require a repeat of the entire process.

June 10, 2003
* Kane County Board

Resolutmn #03-206 approved and ad0pted by the Kane County Board on the Land Use Assumpnons
recommended by the Impact Fee Advisory Commlttee

September 3, 2003
Advisory Committee Meeting




Committee is moving into the second half of the Impact Fee Program development.

Determining the roadway segments and intersections that are currently deficient or future deficiencies
for includence in CRIP.

Determination of fees, credits and developing the Comprehensive Road Improvement Plan are the
primary objectives. CRIP outlines where the Tunds collected may be spent.

Consultant reviewed the inputs to the fee formula based on the needs driven approach as used in
DuPage County that includes new trips generated, VMT, capacity and cost for construction of new lane
mile.

Use of PM Peak Hour (4pm-6pm) traffic numbers as factor in formula. :

Technical Specifications Manual outhnes the process and the details for the fee schedule by service
area.

~ September 10, 2003
Advisory Committee Meeting

. Completed review of the draft Technical Spemﬁcanons Manual

Public comment period will begin October 3, 2003 and run until the date of the public heanng
Public hearing for both the CRIP and Teohmcal Specxﬁcatmns Mannal are set for November
18, 2003.
.Chairman requested copies of draft documents sent to all Mayors, Adrmmstrators Pubhc : Works
departments and Towriship Road Comrmissioners. o

- October 8, 2003
Advisory Committee Meeting

Verified that CRIP and Technical Manual were released for public comment and on the website. -

Began discussions on the language for Road Impact Fee Ordinance. Mmor changes in definitions and
“administrative fee.

Broad viewpoints on when to collect the fees durmg plattin g or prior to issuance of building permit,

November 18 2003
Public Hearing on CRIP and Imposition of Road Improvement Impact ¥ees

Meeting consisted of acceptance of public comments:
1. Attainable Housing Alliance — Prefer to institute the additional 2 cents a gallon gas tax that is
available to the County board as an alternative for funding infrastructure improverments.
2. City of Blgin — recommends that the development approval date be used for assessing fees
" rather than follow the state statute (building permit or certificate of pccupancy).
3. Village of Sugar Grove — Concerns over level of pubho input, assess fees to re51dent1a1
~ development and exempt commercial, fairness and service area delineations.
4. Additional public comments referred to the 2 cents per gallon gas tax as an alternative to the.
impact fee.
Consultant gave brief explanation of the fee schedule and formula for computmg fees.
Discussion of current and future deficiencies, how they were derived and the process to improve future
deficiencies as defined in the statute. -
Public comment period ends November 25, 2003 and the next Advisory Committee meeting will be held
on December 10, 2003 to recommend action to the County board.

December 10, 2003
Advisory Committee Meeting




Review of public comments from the November 18, 2003 public hearing.' .

~ Changes to impact fee schedule should be phased in. Vote 7-0 to instituting a maximum cap of 10%

- plus the construction cost index (as set by the Engineering News Record) to phase in future impact fee
increases. o , : , . Lo

Mayor Schielke moved to have staff examine the fee schedule as it applies to the commercial and

industrial land uses and report back to commnittee. Vote 7-0.

McConnaughay -moved to recommend to the County Board to either adopt, reject or modify the

proposed Comprehensive Road Improvement Plan and Imposition of Impact Fees, as amended by the

Committee on'December 10, 2003, with medifications to the fee schedule for the commercial and

industrial Jand nses pending the staff report to the County Board. Vote 70,

j anunary 13, 2004
Kane County Board

“Resolution 04-21 adopted by a 19-7 vote to adopt Ordinance 04-22.

Moved by Wyatt and seconded by Wolfe that Ordinance (4-22 be modified.

Motion by Hoescheit, seconded by McConnaughay to amend #04-22 to exempt hospitals, nursing

" homes and medical/dental offices. Motion failed 7-19. | - >

- Motion by Carlson, seconded by Mitchell to amend #04-22 by adding section 25, Direction from the
Board to Transportation Committee and all parties involved, to review #04-22 within 30 days of
passage. Motion failed 6-19. N o

" Roll call on#04-22. Ordinance #04-22 approved. Vote 18-7.

_ ~ April 1, 2004
o o Effective date of Ordinance 04-22. -




KANE COUNTY




"KANE COUNTY )
o DIVISION of TRANSPORTATION
Carl Schoedel, P.E.’ AbAday,

iy 8 _ A1W011 Burlington Road

Director of Transportation " SR St. Charles, IL 60175
County Engineet o SFF Wk ' © -Phone: (630) 845-3799
N ' Fax: (630) 587-2474

www.co.Jane.il.us

Ociober 18, 2005

Name
Municipality Name
Address

RE: Land Use Assumption Update
- Dear | .

Th response 'to concerns regarding the equity of Kane County’s Road Improvement Impact Fee
Ordinance; the County has begun to undertake ‘an vpdate of the Road Improvement Impact Fees
program. - During this update, the County will investigate a different methodology, known as the
wgacilities-driven” approach, which is a more flexible and supportive approach to the County’s overall
land use planning goals. - The County has retained Intersect, LLC to conduct the additional analyses
required to perform this update. Intersect, LLC will work closely with the Road Improvement Impact
Fee Advisory Committee, which includes several municipal representatives appointed by the

Kane/Kendall Council of Mayors.

The first phase of the study consists of an update of the existing and projected land use assumptions,
which are integral to the development of the fee calculations. A representative of Intersect, LLC will
be contacting you shortly to set up a meeting to review available data and coordinate any subsequent
efforts. We are ‘asking that you cooperate in this effort by providing Intersect, LLC with your -
Comprehensive Plan and additional information you may have regarding the following general types

of data, preferably by quarter section: - | . :

Number of Households

Housing Density ,

2005 Population (or latest interim census since 2000)

Total Employment

Existing (2005) land use and estimated employment data, along with projected (2015) land use
assumptions, preferably exhibited in acres'as follows:

i W

e  Industrial
s Office
e Retail




Service

Hospital

Educational- ‘
Various Residential Types

Feel free to contact Steve Coffinbargar at (630) 584-1170 if you have any questions. We thank you in

advance for your timely assistance on this important project.

Sincerely,

Carl Schoedel, PE.
County Engineer

cc; file : |
' Karl Fry — Intersect, LLC




